
 
 

 
 
 
 



 2 

 
APUS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

March 16, 2017 
Meeting Package 

 
In this package: 
 

1. Annual General Meeting Agenda for March 16, 2017 
2. Minutes Package 

a. April 1, 2016 
b. March 4, 2016 

3. APUS Bylaw Amendments  
4. APUS Audited Financial Statements 2015-2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 3 

APUS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
March 16, 2017 

AGENDA 
5:00 – 6:00 pm 

Suite 236, North Borden Building (563 Spadina Crescent, Toronto) 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Report of the APUS Executive 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Motion  Moved: Kashyap  Seconded: Froom 
 
Be it resolved that the meeting minutes from the 2016 Annual General Meeting 
be approved. 

 
4. Auditor’s Report 

Motion  Moved: Kashyap  Seconded: Froom 
 

Be it resolved that the Auditor’s report be accepted as presented. 
 

5. Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements 2015-2016 
Motion  Moved: Kashyap  Seconded: Froom   
 
Be it resolved that the Audited Financial Statements for 2015-2016 be received 
as presented. 

 
6. Appointment of the Auditors for 2016-2017 

Motion  Moved: Kashyap  Seconded: Froom 
 
Be it resolved that Yale and Partners LLP be appointed the APUS auditors for 
fiscal year 2015-2016. 
 
Be it further resolved that the Board of Directors fix the remuneration of the 
auditors for the 2015-2016 audit. 

 
7. Ratification of Bylaw Amendments 

` Motion  Moved: Kashyap  Seconded: Froom 
 
Be it resolved that the Bylaw Amendments as recommended by the APUS 
Board of Directors and confirmed by the APUS Assembly be approved as 
presented. 
 

8. Other Business 
 

9. Adjournment 
 
 
 



 4 

Annual General Meeting Minutes 
April 1, 2016 

(rescheduled from March 4, 2016) 
Suite 236, North Borden Building 

563 Spadina Crescent 
 
 
In attendance: Susan Froom, Jennifer Coggon, Yasmin Rajabi, Maina Rambali, Mala Kashyap, 
Christine Cullen, Sophia Ellis, Jose Wilson, George Gawronski, Susan Murray, Riley McCullough 
Speaker: Caitlin Campisi 
Guests: Tala Jalil (ASL), Gemme Humenny (CART) 
Staff: Danielle Sandhu 
  
1. Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:26 pm. 
 
2. APUS Executive Report 
 

The Speaker states that we will begin and that she will make some logistical 
announcements to start. She states that ASL and live captioning have been provided. 
She asks that participants speak one at a time and speak into the microphone. She 
invites Rambali to provide any updates on the Executive report.  
 
Rambali welcomes everyone. She states that there was an update on fossil fuel 
divestment from President Gertler and the announcement was against the 
recommendations of the Advisory Committee. She states that we have exam destressors 
coming up and details on our website. She states we have the Spring Banquet happening 
in the East Common Room at Hart House. She states that we will have dinner, live 
music, dancing and fun. 
 
Ellis asks about purchasing tickets.  
 
Sandhu states they can be purchased online on Eventbrite via credit card, or cash via the 
APUS office and to connect with her. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Motion           Moved: Rambali                    Seconded: Pyne 
  
a) Be it resolved that the meeting minutes from the April 6, 2015 Annual 
General Meeting be approved as presented. 
  
DISCUSSION 
 
Froom asks if there will be two separate votes. 
 
Campisi states they will be separate. 

 
Vote carries. 

 
Motion           Moved: Rambali                    Seconded: Pyne 
 



 5 

b) Be it resolved that the meeting minutes from the October 8, 2014 Special 
General Meeting be approved as presented. 
 
Vote carries. 

 
4. Auditor’s Report 

Motion           Moved: Rambali                    Seconded: Pyne 
  

Be it resolved that the Auditor’s report be accepted as presented. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Campisi states that we had a comprehensive report from the auditor last day and there 
were questions answered at that time. She states that we do need to formally accept the 
report. She states that if there are questions that we can entertain. 
 
There were none. 
 
Vote carries. 
 

5. Audited Financial Statements 
Motion           Moved: Rambali                    Seconded: Pyne  
  
Be it resolved that the Audited Financial Statements for 2014-2015 be received 
as presented. 

 
 DISCUSSION 
 

Campisi states that the financial statements are included in the package and she can 
entertain discussion or questions. 
 
Rambali states we can answer questions but she has nothing to add. 
 
Vote carries. 

 
6. Appointment of auditors 

Motion           Moved: Rambali                    Seconded: Pyne 
  
Be it resolved that Yale and Partners LLP be appointed the APUS auditors for 
fiscal year 2015-2016. 
  
Be it further resolved that the Board of Directors fix the remuneration of the 
auditors for the 2015-2016 audit. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Rambali states she has no comments to add - it is a straightforward item. 
 
Vote carries. 

 
7. Adjournment 

Motion  Moved: Rambali Seconded: Rajabi 
 



 6 

Vote carries.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 6:37 pm.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7 

APUS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
March 4, 2016 

6:00 – 7:00 pm 
Suite 236, North Borden Building 

563 Spadina Crescent 
 

In attendance: Maina Rambali, Mala Kashyap, Margaret Ebifegha, Susan Froom, 
Richie Pyne, Yasmin Rajabi, Christine Cullen, Jennifer Coggon, Yao-Ying Cheng, Anna 
Dohler, Susan Murray, Ken Mills, George Gawronski, Sophia Ellis 
Speaker: Caitlin Campisi 
Staff: Danielle Sandhu 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm.  
 

The Speaker announced that there was no quorum and we would receive 
reports for information.  

 
2. Report of the APUS Executive 
 

Rambali states that she will provide an overview of the year. She provides an 
overview of the Executive and Board training at the start of the year. She states 
that we did collective bargaining, negotiating a new contract, which was signed 
in July of 2015. She states that the Board struck a Bylaw Review Committee to 
review our bylaws as we switched from federal to provincial incorporation. She 
states that for communications we have a new website, where we will be 
posting information, including reports and events. She states that we have a 
new logo and have done some rebranding. She states we launched a new 
breastfeeding station and colour copying in Sid Smith. She states for 
campaigns and advocacy we had a consultation with President Gertler, on the 
President’s Three Priorities. She states we did a consultation with Assistant 
Vice-President Student Life Lucy Fromowitz and the student life staff. She 
states we had an introductory meeting with the Office of the Vice-Provost 
Students, sharing our goals and seeing what they can do for us. She states we 
have had good communication with that Office. She states we have had three 
meetings with them, and one more to follow up. We can take ideas and issues 
forward from members as well. She states that one of the big issues we had 
was student union autonomy following the Student Society Summit held in 
2014. She states that what has come out of that is a draft policy that has been 
circulated for student input. She states that neither APUS nor SCSU nor GSU 
were consulted. She states it was said to be about UTSU and the divisional 
societies but the report affects us all. She states that the executive will be 
consulting. She states that this is ongoing and if folks have read the report to 
send in your feedback. She states that we have been working to respond to the 
President and Provost’s Advisory Committee on Sexual Violence and 
participated in the external working group. She states that the report came out 
in February and though many groups were consulted, the report does not 
include their feedback. She states the Administration is seeking feedback from 
the general student community via the newly created consultation website. She 
states that APUS is part of the Canadian Federation of Students - the national 
students’ union representing students across the country. She states that the 



 8 

Vice-President External is our representative and we are local 97. She states 
that we participate in two meetings a year. She provides an overview of the 
Part-time and Proud campaign, designed to support students. She states we 
send newsletters twice a month, and send out events and conferences. She 
states we also get feedback from students as well. She states all student 
unions at UofT have a seat on the Council of Student Services. She states the 
reason for this is the existence of a memorandum between the government, 
the University administration and students that students must be involved in the 
process governing incidental fees for Student Life, Hart House and Kinesiology 
and Physical Health. She states that on the issue of fossil fuel divestment, 
APUS gave a submission to the President of UofT. She states that the 
Advisory Committee to the President had released a report with 
recommendations to divest from fossil fuels and that we are all waiting on 
Gertler’s response. She thanks Susan Froom and Executive Director Danielle 
Sandhu for their work on the report. She states that the Student Initiative Fund 
is for funding student groups or individuals. She states that APUS hosted a 
townhall on Islamophobia in November. She states that we had a shuttle bus 
initiative, for a shuttle bus running between the St.George and Scarborough 
campuses. She thanks Yasmin Rajabi for her work on this, noting we got good 
feedback. She states that we hosted guest speakers from South Africa to 
speak to the Fees Must Fall campaign for free education. She states that we 
are doing regular outreach for the $15 and Fairness campaign on campus.She 
states that we hosted our Pride Picnic and Caribana events this summer and 
collaborated with a number of campus groups and unions. She states that we 
held our APUS orientation in September for part-time students at Woodsworth 
and it was well-received. She states that she encourages those in the room to 
encourage more students to attend because it’s a good resource for students. 
She states that we had our part-time graduate reception in November for 
students who were graduating and it was held at Waters Lounge. She states 
we would like to have more students in future. She states that we are going to 
have a Spring Banquet at Hart House at the end of April following exams and 
we want to see lots of students attend. She states that we have exam 
destressors coming up. She states that we have been hosting a Lunch and 
Learn workshop series monthly, featuring topics of interest such as social 
media. She states we will continue to bring new workshops. She states that 
Reclaiming our Bodies and Minds is happening next weekend March 11-13, 
2016; it is a conference to explore the ways in which disability manifests, lived 
experiences and more and suggests individuals speak to Vice-President Equity 
Mala Kashyap for more details about conference. 
 
Speaker states if there are questions we can take them now. 
 
Rambali asks if there are questions for any of the executives.  

 
Dohler states that there were a long list of items talked about and APUS is  
active. She asks when we are going to hear back about divestment.  

 
Rambali states end of March.  

 
Rajabi wanted to make a comment to thank APUS staff and executives for 
coming out to Scarborough. She states that the presence is really appreciated, 
especially with the UTSC shuttle bus initiative. 

 



 9 

Ebifegha asks if anyone here wants to get involved in the part-time and proud 
campaign because we can profile them. She encourages participation.  

 
Sophia states that its her first time attending and she wants to be able to know 
where to get the information shared by Rambali. 

 
Sandhu states our year-end report will be in print and available within seven 
days in our offices and online. 

 
Rambali states APUS Executive reports are online on our website. 

 
3. Auditor’s Report 
 

The Speaker welcomes APUS Auditor, Lane Rasmussen, to present. 
Rasmussen used a chart to demonstrate the cash flow of the organization, 
highlighting how and when membership fees come in. He states that for the 
health and dental plans no fees come into APUS during the summer so APUS 
must keep a good financial position for that period. 

 
Cullen states that she likes the chart and it makes it very easy to see.   

 
Richie states he also appreciates having the chart. 

 
 Froom asks if there are monthly payments for insurance. 
 

Rasmussen states that the payments for the health and dental insurance are 
made monthly. 

 
Cullen asks about what is a good buffer.  

 
 Rasmussen states $200,000 at least.  
 
4. Adjournment 
 

The Speaker announces that the meeting will adjourn until April 1, 2016.  
 

Dohler asks about why that date was chosen. 
 

Sandhu explains that as per the requirements, the meeting must be set for a 
time between three to six weeks of this date. She further states a Friday was 
chosen to give care to the fact that many students have classes.  

 
Coggon asks about the size of the APUS membership. 

 
Sandhu replies it fluctuates between 5000-6000 students across the three 
campuses. 

 
Dohler asks about proxies.  

 
Sandhu states this is possible. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:15 pm. 

 



	 10	

 
 

 
 

APUS Bylaw Amendment Package 
 

Approved by the APUS Board of Directors  
& Confirmed by the APUS Assembly 

 
 
In this package: 
 
I. Summary of Changes 
II. Proposed Bylaw Changes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



	 11	

I. Summary of Changes 
 

• The proposed amendments seek to change the rights of ex-officio members of the Board 
of Directors such that they are non-voting directors. The proposed amendments allow ex-
officio directors to have the right to speak and the right to notice of Board meetings, but 
they do not have the right to move or second motions, or participate in in-camera 
sessions of the Board.  

 
• The proposed amendments further seek to remove the restriction on ex-officio members 

of the Board to run for an elected seat on the Board or an Executive Committee position, 
provided they are APUS members and partake in the APUS elections process at the 
Assembly and Board levels as enshrined in the APUS Bylaws. 

 
• The proposed amendments seek to ensure accuracy of the APUS bylaws with respect to 

APUS’ membership definition and location of our head of office.    
 

• The proposed amendments seek to remove the concept of honorary membership.  
 

• The proposed amendments seek to remove references to the Governing Council and its 
policies.  

 
• The proposed amendments seek to revise the roles and responsibilities of the APUS 

Executive Committee such that they are clearer, reduce overlap amongst executive 
responsibilities, and support the mandate of APUS. The proposed amendments seek to 
fulfill a void in the Executive Committee structure as pertaining to equity-based 
campaigns, outreach to members and events.  

o The Executive Committee structure will be amended from a five-member 
committee with a President, Vice-President (Internal), Vice-President (External), 
Secretary, and Treasurer to a new five-member committee with a President, 
Vice-President Internal, Vice-President External, Vice-President Events and 
Outreach and Vice-President Equity. 

o The key responsibilities of the Secretary and Treasurer have been shifted to the 
Vice-President Internal. 

o The Vice-President Events and Outreach is created to support the Events and 
Outreach function of APUS currently not assigned to an Executive Committee 
member. This Officer will work on APUS events and coordinate outreach to the 
membership across all three campuses. 

o The Vice-President Equity is created to support the equity portfolio of APUS 
currently not assigned to an Executive Committee member. This officer will liaise 
with campus groups and focus on equity initiatives. 

 
• The proposed amendments seek to maintain the spirit of the current provisions of the 

bylaw on referenda, but allow for greater flexibility and opportunity to host a referendum 
of the members. This aims to enfranchise the APUS membership. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



	 12	

II. Proposed Bylaw Changes 
 
Please note:  Additions are designated in bold. 

Deletions are designated in strikethrough (strikethrough). 
 
 
 
Amendments to Article 1 – Definitions (1.01) 
 
I. INTERPRETATION  
 
1.01 Definitions  
In this by-law and all other by-laws of the Corporation unless the context requires otherwise:  
 
(a) "the Act" means the Ontario Corporations Act or any statute which may be substituted 
therefor, as amended from time to time;  
 
(b) "Assembly" shall refer to the Assembly of Representatives as constituted in accordance with 
the provisions of Article V hereof;  
 
(c) “Association of Part-time Undergraduate Students” means the Association of Part-time 
Undergraduate Students of the University of Toronto. 
 
(d) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Corporation;  
 
(e) "Class" shall mean any undergraduate course or section thereof in which Part-time 
Undergraduate Students are enrolled;  
 
(f) “Continuing Education Student” means all individuals enrolled within the School of Continuing 
Studies at the University of Toronto. 
 
(g) "Designated newspaper" shall mean the newsletter Voice, or such other comparable 
newspaper (distributed on the University campuses and having comparable circulation) as the 
Board may by resolution designate. 
 
(h) "Force majeure" means any of the following: an act of God, fire, governmental order, court 
order, civil disturbance, act of public enemy, embargo, war, work stoppage or labour dispute.  
 
(i) "Governing Council" means the Governing Council of the University of Toronto, or such other 
body as may succeed the Governing Council or be substituted therefor from time to time;  
 
(j) "Letters patent" means the letters patent of incorporation of the Corporation as from time to 
time amended or restated;  
 
(k) "Non-business day" means Saturday, Sunday and any other day that is a holiday as defined in 
the Interpretation Act (Ontario);  
 
(l) "Part-time Undergraduate Students" means all students registered at the University in a 
program of part-time study and who are not registered in the School of Graduate Studies.  

(i) in the case of undergraduate students in the Faculty of Arts and Science, students 
enrolled in less than four three full course equivalents;  
(ii) in the case of undergraduate students in any other Faculty or Division of the 
University, students who are designated as part-time students by such Faculty or Division 



	 13	

including such students enrolled in certificate and diploma courses offered by 
Woodsworth College.  
 

(m) "Person" includes individuals, bodies corporate, partnerships, trusts and unincorporated 
associations;  
 
(n) "Session" means either the winter session or the summer session of the University as defined 
in the relevant University calendar; 
 
(o) all words used in this by-law and defined in the Act shall have the meanings given to such 

words in the Act.  
 
(o) “Special Students” means all individuals who are taking at least one undergraduate or 
professional course or section thereof at the University but who are not registered in a program of 
full-time study that leads to degree or post-secondary diploma or certificate of the University and 
who are not Continuing Education Students.  
 
(p) "Suburban campus" means either the University of Toronto Mississauga or University of 
Toronto Scarborough campus of the University of Toronto;  
 
(q) "University" shall mean the University of Toronto; 
 
(r) all words used in this by-law and defined in the Act shall have the meanings given to 
such words in the Act. 
 
Re-number and re-alphabetize the article. 
 
 
 
Amendments to Article 2 – Head Office (2.01) 
 
2.01 Head Office  
 
Until changed by by-law, the head office of the Corporation shall be in the City of Toronto, in the 
Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto, in the Province of Ontario, at 100 St. George St. 563 
Spadina Crescent or at such other locations within the City of Toronto as the Board may from 
time to time determine by resolution.  
 
 
 
Amendments to Article 3 – Membership (3.03) 
 
3.03  Honourary Membership  
Upon nomination by the Board and confirmation by resolution passed by a majority of vote of the 
members of the Assembly of Representatives present and voting at the meeting of the Assembly 
during which such matter shall be considered, any person may be made an honourary member 
of the Corporation. Honourary members shall be exempt from the provisions of Section 3.04 and 
shall not be entitled to notice or to exercise votes at meetings of members. Honourary members 
will be welcome to attend any special events upon invitation. 
Re-number remainder of article 3 accordingly. 
 
 
 



	 14	

Amendments to Article 4 – Members (4.04) 
 
4.04 Persons Entitled to be Present  
The only persons entitled to attend an annual meeting of members of the Corporation shall be 
the Speaker, those entitled to vote thereat, the Directors and Officers of the Corporation, 
Honourary Members, the auditor of the Corporation and others who, although not entitled to 
vote, are entitled or required under any provisions of the Act, the letters patent or the by-laws of 
the Corporation to be presented at the meeting. Any other person may be admitted only on the 
invitation of the Speaker of the meeting or with the consent of the meeting.  
 
 
 
Amendments to Article 6 – Directors (6.02, 6.03, 6.04, 6.05, 6.08, 6.13) 
 
6.02 Eligibility  
 
(a) Except for ex-officio Directors, Each Director and Officer shall be a Part-Time undergraduate 
student and a member of the Assembly of Representatives during the session in which their 
election is held and pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof shall remain a member of the Corporation 
throughout the term of his or her office.  
 
(b) A Director or Officer of the Corporation shall cease to be eligible to remain in such office:  
 
(i) if at any time he or she shall become of unsound mind or be found by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be mentally incompetent;  
 
(ii) if at any time he or she shall become bankrupt;  
 
(iii) upon the submission of his or her written resignation from such office; or  
 
(iv) upon his or her removal from such office pursuant to Sections 6.08 or 8.07 hereof.  
 
 
6.03 Composition of the Board  
 
(a) There shall be fifteen members of the Board of whom twelve shall be elected voting Directors 
and three shall be ex-officio non-voting directors;  
 
(b) The ex-officio voting Directors shall be comprised of the immediate past president of the 
Corporation and the two Part-time Student Representatives who shall have been elected to 
represent part-time undergraduate students on the Governing Council of the University. Ex-
officio directors shall be non-voting, shall have the right to speak and receive notice of 
meetings but shall not have the right to participate in in-camera sessions of the Board; 
 
(c) The elected Directors shall be elected by the Assembly from and amongst the members of the 
Assembly in accordance with the following:  
 
(i) 6 Directors shall be members who are registered in Woodsworth College;  
 
(ii) 2 Directors shall be members who are registered in any of Innis, New, St. Michael, Trinity, 
University or Victoria Colleges;  
 



	 15	

(iii) 1 Director shall be a member who is registered in Erindale College;  
 
(iv) 1 Director shall be a member who is registered in Scarborough College; and  
 
(v) 2 Directors shall be directors at large.  
 
 
6.04 Election of the Board of Directors  
 
Elected Directors shall be elected by and from amongst members of the Assembly as follows:  
 
(a) The election of Directors shall be held at the meeting of the Assembly held during the month 
of March of each year;  
 
(b) Notice of such meeting shall be given to members of the Assembly at least one month prior to 
the proposed date thereof;  
 
 (c) On or prior to January 31st in each year, the Board shall designate five members of the 
Assembly to be constituted as a nomination committee which shall be responsible for obtaining 
nominations of members of the Assembly to stand for election to the Board and to present a 
report to the March meeting of the Assembly of Representatives regarding such nominees;  
 
(d) Notwithstanding the nominations proposed by the nominating committee contemplated by 
paragraph (c) hereof, any eligible member of the Assembly may, upon presentation of a written 
nomination form signed by five members of the Assembly and prior to the time when the meeting 
shall be called to order shall be eligible to stand for election to the Board;  
 
(e) Directors shall be elected from and amongst the constituencies set forth in Section 6.03 above 
and shall be elected by the plurality of the votes cast in a secret ballot.  
 
(f) Where an ex-officio Director's term of office is concluding, and he or she is not standing for re-
election, or has not been re-elected to that office, they shall be eligible to be elected to the Board 
of Directors from the constituency in which they are registered.  
 
6.05 Term of Office  
 
The term of office of Directors shall be from May 1st to April 30th except that the two ex-officio 
Directors holding office by virtue of their being elected to represent Part-time Undergraduate 
Students on the Governing Council shall serve as ex-officio Directors only during the duration of 
their elected term to Governing Council.  
 
6.07 Voting  
 
All elected Directors (including elected and ex-officio Directors) shall have one vote at each 
meeting of the Board. Ex-officio Directors are non-voting. 
 
6.13 Meeting Procedure  
 
Subject to the letters patent and by-laws of the Corporation, Robert's Rules of Order, Newly 
Revised shall be the rules of procedure of meetings of the Board.  
 
Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, or by resolution of the Assembly, the Board shall 
conduct its meetings by such rules of order as are considered just and expedient for the 



	 16	

transaction of the business before the Board meeting, save that the Speaker may, at his or her 
discretion, invoke Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised to expedite the transaction of business.  
 
A representative of the student organizations representing part-time undergraduate students at 
the suburban campuses shall be entitled to all of the rights of a member of the Board, save that 
said representative shall not be entitled to exercise votes, to move or second motions, or to 
participate in in-camera sessions at Board meetings.  
 
 
 
 
Amendments to Article 8 – Officers and Executive Committee (8.01) 
 
8.01 Officers and Executive Committee  
 
The Corporation shall have the following officers, who shall form the Executive Committee of the 
Board of Directors:  
 
(a) President  
(b) Vice-President (External) Internal 
(c) Vice-President (Internal) External 
(d) Treasurer Vice-President Events and Outreach 
(e) Secretary Vice-President Equity 
 
The Officers shall be elected in the sequence indicated above by and from among the incoming 
elected Directors present and voting at the first meeting of the Board, other than ex-officio 
Directors, at the Joint Meeting held pursuant to Section 6.11 hereof. Officers shall be elected by a 
majority of the votes cast in a secret ballot. If more than two candidates are nominated, 
successive ballots shall be conducted, if necessary, until one candidate has received a majority of 
the votes cast, and on each ballot after the first ballot, the name of the candidate for whom the 
least number of elected Directors voted for on the immediate preceding ballot shall be removed 
from the ballot.  
 
Where an ex-officio Director's term of office is concluding, and they are not standing for re-
election, or has not been re-elected to that office, they shall be eligible to be elected for any 
Officer position.  
 
8.03 President  
 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from 
time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the President shall:  
 
(i) serve as the official representative and spokesperson of the Corporation;  
(ii) serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation;  
(iii) be an ex-officio member with a vote on all standing and special committees of the 
Corporation, or designate another Director to represent the President at such committees,  
(iv) act as Chair of the Executive Committee  
(v) be a signing officer for the Corporation.  
 
8.04 b) Vice-President (Internal) 
 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from 
time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Vice-President 
(Internal) shall:  



	 17	

 
(i) work with the President to ensure the well-being and maintenance, and of the overall internal 
operations of the Corporation 
 
(ii) work with the President to manage the human resources function of the Corporation 
to ensure healthy staff relations and internal organization functions 
 
(iii) assists the Vice-President (External) with outreach functions 
 
(iii) act as Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation 
 
(iv) act as the official Secretary of the Corporation 
 
(iv) (v) be a signing officer for the Corporation 
 
 
8.04 a) 8.05 Vice-President (External) 
 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from 
time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Vice-President 
(External) shall:  
 
(i) in the absence of the President, perform all the duties of the President;  
(ii) be an ex-officio member with a vote on all standing and special committees of the Corporation, 
or designate another Director to represent the Vice-President at such committees. 
 

(iii) (i) be responsible for representation of the Corporation in provincial and national 
student organizations; including the Canadian Federation of Students and Canadian 
Federation of Students-Ontario 
(iv) (ii) Along with Vice-President Events and Outreach be responsible for community 
outreach and liaising with other students and student/community organizations and their 
representatives on and off campus 
(iii) liaise with all student unions at the University of Toronto, including part-time 
student representatives of the University of Toronto Mississauga Students’ Union 
and Scarborough Campus Students’ Union 
 (v) (iv) work with other executive members to organize campaigns, including 
campaigns on education, according to the mandate of APUS and as directed by the 
Executive, Board and Assembly 
(v) work with other executive members to implement the campaigns of the 
Canadian Federation of Students and Canadian Federation of Students – Ontario 
(vi) be a signing officer for the Corporation. 

 
8.06 Vice-President Events and Outreach 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board 
from time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the 
Vice-President Events and Outreach shall:  
 

(i) be responsible for organizing events, including orientation events for the 
Corporation 

(ii) coordinate the outreach and membership recruitment initiatives of the 
Corporation 

(iii) organize outreach across all campuses of the University of Toronto 
(iv) coordinate outreach with the APUS Class Representatives and volunteers 
(v) along with the Vice-President External, liaise with campus groups at the 

University of Toronto 
(vi) be a signing officer for the Corporation. 



	 18	

 
8.05 Treasurer  
 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from 
time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Treasurer shall:  
(i) be responsible for the financial matters of the Corporation, in accordance with Article XIII of 
this by-law;  
(ii) advise the Board on these matters;  
(iii) chair the Finance Committee.  
(iv) ensure Board and staff compliance with financial policies, procedures and internal controls,  
(v) be a signing officer for the Corporation.  
 
8.07 Vice-President Equity 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board 
from time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the 
Vice-President Equity shall:  
 

(i) work to improve the status of mature students, students with disabilities, student 
parents and other marginalized groups at the University 

(ii) work with other executive members to organize campaigns on part-time student 
issues, including but not limited to, access to education, childcare, transit, 
housing, tuition fees, and systemic discrimination in accordance with the mandate 
of APUS and as directed by the Executive, Board and Assembly 

(iii) liaise with equity-seeking campus groups and APUS levy groups  
(iv) liaise with the equity offices at the University of Toronto 
(v) along with the Vice-President Events and Outreach organize events promoting 

social justice and equity 
(vi) be a signing officer for the Corporation. 

 
8.06 Secretary  
 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing in Section 8.02, or the ability of the Board from 
time to time to vary, add to or limit the powers and duties of any of the officer, the Secretary shall:  
(i) act as Secretary at any meeting of the Board of Directors, the Assembly of Representatives 
and the annual meeting of members of the Corporation;  
(ii) act as recording secretary for the purpose of recording minutes of meetings of the Board of 
Directors, the Assembly of Representatives and the annual meeting of members of the 
Corporation;  
(iii) be the Secretary of the Corporation;  
(iv) be a signing officer for the Corporation. 
 
 
Amendments to Article 11 – Amendment of Bylaws (11.06) 
 
11.06 Approval by Governing Council  
 
An amendment repeal or re-enactment of Articles III or XI, or Sections 4.01, 5.03, 6.03, 6.04, 
6.05, 8.01, 8.07, 11.06, 13.03, 13.08, or 13.12 of this by-law shall be effective only upon 
approval thereof by the Governing Council.  
 
And re-number the article. 
 
 
 
 



	 19	

 
Amendments to Article 13 – General Guidelines (13.01, 13.08, 13.12) 
 
13.01 General Guidelines  
The Corporation shall at all times consider and to the greatest extent applicable adhere to the 
appropriate guidelines for accounting and financial procedures set forth in the "Financial 
Guidelines for Student Societies" approved and amended from time to time by the Governing 
Council.  
 
13.01 General Guidelines  
 
The Corporation shall at all times consider and to the greatest extent applicable adhere to 
generally accepted accounting principles.  Directors shall act with diligence, fiduciary 
care and in the best interest of the Corporation. 
 
 
13.08 Borrowing  
The Board of Directors may from time to time:  
(a) borrow money on the credit of the Corporation; or  
(b) charge, mortgage, hypothecate or pledge all or nay of the real or personal property of the 

Corporation including book debts, rights, powers, franchises and undertakings to secure any 
securities or any money borrowed, or other debt, or any other obligation or liability of the 
Corporation.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation shall not:  
(i)             without the approval of the Governing Council, borrow money other than from 
chartered banks or trust companies provided that such restriction shall not apply to purchase 
money obligations; or  
(ii)            borrow money which is not fully repayable during a term of one year or less, unless 
approved by a resolution passed by two-thirds of the Directors present and voting.  

 
13.12 Financial Statements  
The Corporation shall comply with the financial statement requirements of the Act, which are 
applicable to the Corporation. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the Corporation 
shall cause to be prepared the following financial statements:  
(i) Balance Sheet;  
(ii)   Statement of Income and Expenses;  
(iii)  Statement of Accumulated Equity;  
(iv)  Statement of Change in Financial Position.  
The financial statements of the Corporation and the auditor's report thereon shall be published 
and made available for distribution to members of the Corporation in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 4.01 hereof and shall be filed with the Governing Council and the 
University's Internal Auditor not later than six months following the end of the Corporation's fiscal 
year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


























	AgmMeetingPackage-2017
	APUS AGM Bylaw Amendment Package
	APUS Audit 2015-16

